
 
                                                                            

CITY COUNCIL RETREAT MINUTES 
CITY OF ODESSA, TEXAS 

DECEMBER 2, 2014 
 

  
 

On December 2, 2014, a retreat meeting of the Odessa City Council was held at 1:00 p.m., 
at City Hall, 5th floor conference room, 411 W. 8th St., Odessa, Texas. 
       
Members present: Mayor David R. Turner, Council members: Roger McNeil, District one; 
Dewey Bryant, District two; Barbara Graff, District three; Michael Gardner, District four; and 
Filiberto Gonzales, District five. 
 
Others present: Richard Morton, City Manager; Larry Long, City Attorney; Norma Aguilar-
Grimaldo, City Secretary; Michael Marrero, Deputy City Manager; Konrad Hildebrandt, 
Assistant City Manager; and others. 
 
A quorum being present, the following proceedings were held: 
 
Acquisition of Water.  Tommy Ervin provided background information on water.  Darrell 
Peckham stated that a non-profit organization was created for the purpose to seek and save 
water in the Permian Basin.  He discussed the aquifer which had a limited amount of 
freshwater.  He reported that the project was feasible for a 15-year period and the water 
would not dry.  He stated there was more water but over time the water could change and 
even be brackish.  Mr. Morton asked about the water rights under the Pecos Alluvium.  Mr. 
Peckham stated it was another resource and there were options with the Pecos Valley 
Alluvium and the Capitan Reef.  He recommended monitoring and communication with the 
neighboring towns.  Mr. Peckham discussed the monitoring pump well  in Wink.  He 
provided a history of usage information.  Mr. Long restated that there was 15 years of water 
at 65 MGD without the use of lake water.  Mayor Turner stated that realistically there was 20 
years of secured water. Mr. Peckham reported that with monitoring  adjusted changes could 
be done in advance and adjustments could be made with the water.  He stated that the wells 
do have a life span.   
 
Council member Gardner stated that many people were pulling water out of the Capitan.  It 
was free-flowing water. Mr. Ervin stated that some wells were down in the Capitan.  He 
stated that there was a water line pumping 150 barrels.  The Capitan Reef has lots of water 
available.  He stated that other municipalities may come and get water from our area.  He 
reported that Clayton Williams had a water study made.  The Pecos County water had good 
drinking water and there was a lot of water.  Mr. Morton stated that there was an issue with 
permission to get the water out and the cost.  Mr. Ervin stated that there was a lot of water in 
West Texas.   
 
Mr. Peckham suggested on seeking water supply.  He discussed legislation in regards to 
water.  There were many new legislators elected into office and it was uncertain on their 
stance.  It will be more conservative and it was reported not to ask for any funds.  There was 
a Midland exemption that the ground water district wanted to eliminate.  The exemption did 
not allow the ability to regulate municipalities on water.  It was in the best interest of the city 
to keep this exemption.  Ward and Winkler County filed to create a water conservation 
district.  
 
 



Council Retreat Minutes   
December 2, 2014 
Page 2 
 
Council member Graff asked the effect on the city with the oil companies and the drilling of 
water.  Mr. Peckham stated that it would depend on where and which aquifer was used.  
Council member Gardner stated that it cost more to clean the water than to pump it out.  
Council member Bryant asked questions regarding  building the infrastructure, precedent set 
for rights, and cost for building a pipeline from the San Antonio area to West Texas.  Mr. 
Ervin stated that a pipeline was built from Del Rio to McCamey which was 137 miles.  
Council members thanked Mr. Peckham and Mr. Ervin for their presentation. 
 
Housing  incentives and options.  Scott Jones, Economic Development Director, reported 
that there were more projects in Midland with multi-dwelling housing.  The performa showed 
better wages, rent higher and build better in Midland.  He stated that incentives were 
needed to build in Odessa.  The number of housing does not meet the demand.  He stated 
that if a 4B sales tax was established it would open the opportunity to fund housing.  There 
were State, loan and bond programs available.  He reported that homes in West Odessa 
had unrealistic pricing.  Council member Bryant stated that the houses were not appraising 
with the selling price.  Mr. Jones stated that our pricing was 15% above the Dallas suburb 
on housing.  Council member Bryant stated it was easier to rent then purchase a home due 
to the required information needed to buy a home.   
 
Mr. Marrero reported that the average construction cost for a home was $225,000.  He 
reviewed the initiatives that have been done to foster housing development for the city.  He 
reviewed the building permits as compared to Midland.  Odessa has a small number of 
ready land for housing construction.  Many areas were underway for residential homes. The 
developers were looking at east and north Odessa.  There was an 99% occupancy rate for 
2014 on housing.  In city limits, there were 268 homes for sale with a vast number over 
$170,000.   He reviewed the current programs that the city offered including the Homebuyer 
Assistance program, Home Your Own program, and the Infill program.  He reviewed the 
current housing activity.  The challenge was the infrastructure cost in trying to keep costs 
down.  The average cost per square foot was between $110 to $115.  He discussed the 
option for a downtown apartment development.  It could be developed with a tax credit or 
other means with no income restrictions.  The apartment complex could be constructed on 
vacant land or on land that required tearing down structures.  Mr. Morton stated that 
securing land would need to be obtained for the apartment development.    Mr. Jones stated 
that the residence would revitalize downtown.  Mr. Morton stated that OIDC could buy the 
property or use funds from the General Fund.  Odessa Development Corporation funds 
could not be used.  The Water or General Fund could be used for workforce housing 
incentives for contractors.  Permit fees could be waived for multi-family dwellings on 
$80,000 and up.  There was a land banking program available but would have a long time 
frame.  An inclusionary zoning ordinance could be adopted to mandate developers for 
moderate homes or pay a fee to develop elsewhere.   
 
Mr. Morton stated that there was $3 million of excess available funds.  There were projects 
lined up for those funds.  If growth continues there would be more funds available.   
 
The 8th and Coronado project was discussed.  Land needed to be obtained.  Mr. Long was 
working on this project with the owners.   
 
Mr. Hildebrandt stated that synergy would be promoted in improving the quality of life and 
branding Odessa.   
 



Council Retreat Minutes   
December 2, 2014 
Page 3 
 
There was a short break.   
 
Convention center and downtown development.  Mr. Morton reported that the 
convention center would cost $70 million.  Incentives could be provided for the developer 
from ODC funds, hotel motel tax funds, State funds, or from city funds.  The land has been 
secured.  There was a possibility of building multi-family housing but land would need to be 
obtained.  There was an option to have a separate convention center or integrate it with part 
of the hotel. The capacity was discussed.  Future taxes could be used to fund the project.  
The project was a quality of life issue.   
 
Council member Graff expressed concerns about the entire Council not being involved in 
the project.  She wanted the Council to make the decisions on the convention center.   
Mayor Turner reviewed the events of this project.  Mr. Long stated that Council would decide 
on the size, parking and if it were to integrate with the courthouse and housing.  Mr. Roberts 
stated that Council would go into an agreement with Gatehouse for a feasibility study.    Mr. 
Morton stated that Gatehouse was the master developer and was the connection to obtain 
the brand hotels.  The study would provide options for Council’s decision which would 
include financing options. Council member Gonzales favored the idea of the hotel running 
the convention center, such as the Overton in Lubbock.   
 
Parkland dedication ordinance.  Steve Patton, Director of Parks and Recreation, stated 
that the parkland dedication ordinance was recommended in the last two park master plans. 
The  ordinance would provide for proper disbursement of parks in the city.  Currently, there 
were no parks in East Odessa.  Most of the service parks were in South Odessa.  There 
was 800 acres of park land but most of it was drainage and there were no funds.  Many 
cities have a parkland dedication ordinance.  The Parks and Recreation Advisory board 
supports the ordinance.  He warned that there may be some backlash from the developers.  
He stated it would improve the quality of life. 
 
Todd Stephens, Assistant City Attorney, stated that public input from the Parks Master plan 
meetings had 60% support of the ordinance.  Courts have given specific guidelines for the 
ordinance.  He cited court cases to support the ordinance.  The required costs in the 
ordinance must be supported through quantifiable numbers.  He reviewed the guidelines 
and calculations of the draft ordinance.  The ordinance includes fees for land or a park 
development fee. The calculations must be up-to-date and be reviewed by Council.  Mr. 
Long stated that there would be some opposition of the ordinance. The draft ordinance 
would go before the Planning & Zoning Commission.  Mr. Stephens stated that the 
developer would have the option of providing land dedication or giving funds.  Council 
member Gardner supported the ordinance.  
 
Landscape ordinance.  Mr. Stephens stated that the Parks Master Plan recommended a 
landscape ordinance with a 71% support.  He reviewed the current landscape provisions 
which had no minimum standards.  If approved, the existing landscaping would be 
grandfathered unless there were renovations made to the property.   
 
Mr. Patton stated that the ordinance was tailored after the City of Midland.  The Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board supported the ordinance.  It will go to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for consideration.  Mr. Long stated that there may be negative feedback on the 
ordinance.  Mr. Stephens stated that the ordinance was more flexible than Midland’s.  
Council member Graff suggested giving incentives to developers that were in the process of 



Council Retreat Minutes   
December 2, 2014 
Page 4 
 
landscaping.   
 
Implementation of 4B sales tax . Mr. Long stated that the 4B sales tax would provide 
opportunity to fund additional projects including affordable housing and water conservation 
programs.  There would be more requirements for the projects.  Voter approval was needed 
to implement the 4B sales tax.  Under the 4B, it was not required to create primary jobs.   
He stated the city could have 4A and 4B sales tax or switch to 4B.  Council member Graff 
stated that there would need to be support for the 4B sales tax campaign.  No city funds can 
be used for the election campaign.   
 
Code Enforcement and clean up.  Merita Sandoval, Director of Community Development,  
reviewed the notices given from the last fiscal year.  She gave an overview of the 
responsibilities of Code Enforcement.  She highlighted enforcing health and sanitation with 
its case processing.  Officers enforce the solid waste ordinance and the junked vehicle 
ordinance.  Junked vehicles must meet specific criteria.  In one case, 18 vehicles were 
removed from one property.  Officers also enforce water conservative ant the water 
nuisance.  The zoning ordinance was challenging to enforce.  She discussed the case 
processing on the zoning violations.   
 
Mayor Turner stated that  trucks were parked on retail parking lots.  Mr. Morton stated the 
zoning would determine if they could park on the lots.  Mrs. Sandoval stated that the officers 
were assigned to areas.  The officers were working hard and there was one officer who 
worked on the weekends.  The additional four officers have helped the department.  Mr. 
Long stated that the enforcement was a joint effort with Code Enforcement, Municipal Court 
and the judges.   
 
Professional services agreement for University Blvd. widening project.  Mr. Marrero 
announced that Tom Kerr was promoted as the new Public Works Director and Utilities was 
moved under Public Works.   
 
Hal Feldman, Traffic Engineer, stated that Council would consider an award of contract to 
Kimley-Horn for the design phase for the University widening project.  The widening would 
be from Hancock to west of Grandview.  The cost of the design services was $848,000. 
University would be widened to a five-lane roadway with sidewalks and handicap ramps.  
The firm would provide public education through newsletters, one-on-one meetings with 
property owners, a specific telephone number, and other public meetings.  The design 
project would last 22 months, then construction would be in two phases.  Each phase would 
take one-year to construct.  Funds would be used from the 2013 bond issuance.  The total 
construction cost was $10 million.  Possible land acquisition may take place due to the 
complexity of the project. The total completion of the project was four years.  
 
Replacement of six ambulances. Glen Hogue, Assistant Fire Chief, stated that Council 
would consider the purchase of six ambulances for replacements.  Each ambulance would 
cost $248,000 for a total cost of $1,422,928.  The old ambulances would be sold at auction. 
 Delivery of the ambulances was seven to eight months.  Road Rescue, out of Florida, will 
build the ambulances.  



Council Retreat Minutes   
December 2, 2014 
Page 5 
 
 
There was no other business, the meeting adjourned at 5:25 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: 

 

 

APPROVED: 

Norma Aguilar-Grimaldo, TRMC, CMC 

City Secretary 

David R. Turner 

Mayor 

 


